

# MAINE STATE LEGISLATURE

The following document is provided by the  
**LAW AND LEGISLATIVE DIGITAL LIBRARY**  
at the Maine State Law and Legislative Reference Library  
<http://legislature.maine.gov/lawlib>



Reproduced from electronic originals  
(may include minor formatting differences from printed original)

**LAWS**  
**OF THE**  
**STATE OF MAINE**

**AS PASSED BY THE**

**ONE HUNDRED AND TWENTY-FOURTH LEGISLATURE**

**SECOND REGULAR SESSION**  
**January 6, 2010 to April 12, 2010**

**THE GENERAL EFFECTIVE DATE FOR**  
**SECOND REGULAR SESSION**  
**NON-EMERGENCY LAWS IS**  
**JULY 12, 2010**

**PUBLISHED BY THE REVISOR OF STATUTES**  
**IN ACCORDANCE WITH MAINE REVISED STATUTES ANNOTATED,**  
**TITLE 3, SECTION 163-A, SUBSECTION 4.**

---

---

**Augusta, Maine**  
**2010**

representing users of automated license plate recognition systems.

**Sec. 3. Report.** The working group under section 2 shall submit a report including its findings and recommendations to the joint standing committee of the Legislature having jurisdiction over transportation matters no later than January 15, 2011.

See title page for effective date.

**CHAPTER 606**

**H.P. 1086 - L.D. 1542**

**An Act To Make Maine's Laws  
Consistent with the Federal  
Family Smoking Prevention  
and Tobacco Control Act**

**Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine as follows:**

**Sec. 1. 22 MRSA §1560-D**, as amended by PL 2007, c. 612, §1, is further amended to read:

**§1560-D. Flavored cigars**

**1. Definitions.** As used in this subchapter, unless the context otherwise indicates, the following terms have the following meanings.

A. "Characterizing flavor" means a distinguishable taste or aroma of candy, chocolate, vanilla, fruit, berry, nut, herb, spice, honey or an alcoholic drink that is imparted to tobacco or tobacco smoke either prior to or during consumption; ~~other than a taste or aroma from tobacco, menthol, clove, coffee, nuts or peppers.~~ "Characterizing flavor" does not include a taste or aroma from tobacco. A cigar is deemed to have a characterizing flavor if the cigar is advertised or marketed as having or producing the taste or aroma of candy, chocolate, vanilla, fruit, berry, nut, herb, spice, honey or an alcoholic drink.

B. "Component part" includes but is not limited to the tobacco, filter and paper in a ~~cigarette or~~ cigar.

C. "Constituent" means any ingredient, substance, chemical or compound, other than tobacco, water or reconstituted tobacco sheet, that is added by the manufacturer to the tobacco, paper or filter of a ~~cigarette or~~ cigar during the processing, manufacture or packing of the ~~cigarette or~~ cigar. "Constituent" includes a smoke constituent.

D. "Flavored cigar" means a cigar or any component part ~~thereof~~ of the cigar that contains a constituent that imparts a characterizing flavor.

~~E. "Flavored cigarette" means a cigarette or any component part thereof that contains a constituent that imparts a characterizing flavor.~~

E-1. "Premium cigar" means a cigar that weighs more than 3 pounds per 1,000 cigars and is wrapped in whole tobacco leaf.

F. "Smoke constituent" means any chemical or chemical compound in mainstream or sidestream tobacco smoke that either transfers from any component of the ~~cigarette or~~ cigar to the smoke or that is formed by the combustion or heating of tobacco, additives or other component of the tobacco product.

**2. Prohibition on sale or distribution of flavored cigars.** ~~Beginning July 1, 2009~~ Except as provided in subsection 5-A, a person may not sell or distribute or offer to sell or distribute in this State any flavored ~~cigarette or~~ flavored cigar unless: the cigar is a premium cigar.

~~A. The flavored cigarette or flavored cigar was first on the market prior to January 1, 1985, based on a statement to that effect filed with the Attorney General by the current manufacturer and verified by the Attorney General.~~

~~B. The flavored cigarette or flavored cigar is exempt under subsection 5; or~~

~~C. The sale is allowed under the transition provisions of subsection 7.~~

**3. Violation.** A person who violates this section commits a civil violation for which fines may be imposed under subsection 4.

**4. Fines.** The fines that apply to violations of this section are as set out in this subsection.

A. A person who violates subsection 2 ~~or 6~~ commits a civil violation for which a fine of \$1,000 may be adjudged.

B. A person who violates subsection 2 ~~or 6~~ after having previously been convicted of a violation of ~~the same~~ that subsection commits a civil violation for which a fine of \$5,000 may be adjudged.

~~**5. Exemptions.** For flavored cigarettes and flavored cigars that were first on the market after January 1, 1985, the Attorney General shall establish and administer a process by rule for granting exemptions based on a determination by the Attorney General that the characterizing flavor is not one known to appeal or likely to appeal to youth.~~

A. After an exemption has been granted for a flavored cigarette or flavored cigar under this subsection, a person or entity to whom an exemption has been granted has an affirmative duty to inform the Attorney General at the time that a material change is made in the characterizing flavor of the

~~flavored cigarette or flavored cigar. A violation of the duty to inform imposed by this paragraph constitutes a civil violation for which a fine of not more than \$10,000 may be adjudged.~~

~~B. The Attorney General may revoke an exemption granted under this subsection if the Attorney General determines that a material change has been made to the product's characterizing flavor.~~

5-A. Exemptions. Any flavored cigar that the Attorney General determined had no characterizing flavor or was otherwise exempt under former subsection 5 is exempt from the prohibition on flavored non-premium cigars in subsection 2 so long as no material change is made to the cigar's flavoring, packaging or labeling subsequent to the Attorney General's determination.

~~6. Tobacco distributors.~~ Beginning on July 1, 2009, a tobacco distributor may not purchase or accept for sale new stock of flavored cigarettes and flavored cigars except for flavored cigarettes or flavored cigars that are exempt under subsection 5.

~~7. Transition.~~ Notwithstanding the prohibitions of subsection 2, from July 1, 2009 to December 31, 2009, a tobacco distributor or retailer may sell flavored cigarettes and flavored cigars that the distributor or retailer held in stock prior to July 1, 2009.

**8. Website information.** To the extent that resources permit, the Attorney General shall maintain on a publicly accessible website a list of ~~flavored cigarettes and flavored cigars that are exempt from the prohibition under subsection 5-A~~ and authorized for distribution and sale in the State.

~~9. Rulemaking.~~ No later than January 15, 2008, the Attorney General shall adopt rules to implement this section. Rules adopted pursuant to this subsection are major substantive rules as defined in Title 5, chapter 375, subchapter 2-A.

**10. Transfers of funds.** Notwithstanding any other provision of law, for fiscal years beginning on or after July 1, 2009 the State Controller shall transfer \$92,660 no later than June 30, 2010 and \$145,147 no later than June 30, 2011 from the Fund for a Healthy Maine to General Fund undedicated revenue.

For fiscal years beginning on or after July 1, 2011 the State Controller in consultation with the State Tax Assessor shall determine the General Fund revenue loss resulting from this section and transfer that amount at least annually from the Fund for a Healthy Maine to General Fund undedicated revenue.

**Sec. 2. Maine Revised Statutes headnote amended; revision clause.** In the Maine Revised Statutes, Title 22, chapter 262-A, subchapter 5, in the subchapter headnote, the words "flavored cigarettes and flavored cigars" are amended to read "flavored cigars" and the Revisor of Statutes shall implement

this revision when updating, publishing or republishing the statutes.

See title page for effective date.

---

---

**CHAPTER 607**  
**S.P. 666 - L.D. 1737**

**An Act To Clarify Safety Requirements in Acadia National Park**

**Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine as follows:**

**Sec. 1. 12 MRSA §756** is enacted to read:

**§756. Acadia National Park**

**1. Definitions.** As used in this section, unless the context otherwise indicates, the following terms have the following meanings.

A. "Firearm" has the same meaning as in section 10001, subsection 21.

B. "Residential dwelling" means a fixed housing structure that either is the principal residence of its occupants or is occupied on a regular and recurring basis by its occupants as an alternate residence or vacation home.

**2. Possession of firearms.** A person may not use or possess a firearm in Acadia National Park except:

A. Within a residential dwelling;

B. To the extent the firearm is used in connection with hunting when and where authorized by state or federal law;

C. Within a mechanical mode of conveyance as long as the firearm is rendered temporarily inoperable or is packed, cased or stored in a manner that prevents its ready use;

D. When the firearm is carried by an authorized federal, state or local law enforcement officer in the performance of the officer's official duties;

E. When the firearm is a concealed firearm carried by a qualified law enforcement officer pursuant to 18 United States Code, Section 926B. The law enforcement officer must have in the law enforcement officer's possession photographic identification issued by the law enforcement agency by which the person is employed as a law enforcement officer;

F. When the firearm is a concealed firearm carried by a qualified retired law enforcement officer pursuant to 18 United States Code, Section 926C. The retired law enforcement officer must have in the retired law enforcement officer's possession: